Agenda - Culture, Welsh Language and
Communications Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 2 - Senedd Manon George

Meeting date: 19 March 2020 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 09.30 0300 200 6565

SeneddCWLC@assembly.wales

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest

2 Inquiry into the devolution of broadcasting
(09.30-10.15) (Pages 1 - 10)

Ed Talfan, Severn Screen

3 The future of Six Nations Broadcasting
(10:15-11:00) (Pages 11 - 22)
Huw Llywelyn Davies, Former S4C Rugby Commentator
Andrew Weeks, Cardiff University

Carolyn Hitt, Journalist

Break
(1T1:00-11:15)

4 The future of Six Nations Broadcasting
(11:15-12:00)
Gareth Davies, Chairman, WRU

Craig Maxwell, Financial Director, WRU

5 Paper(s) to note

5.1 Correspondence with National Youth Arts Wales

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales

(Pages 23 - 34)



5.2

5.3

Letter from the Music Venues Trust
(Pages 35 - 37)
Correspondence with the Welsh Government on Welsh language funding
(Pages 38 - 42)

Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the remainder of the meeting

Private debrief
(12:00-12:15)



By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



By virtue of paragraph(s) vii of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 3

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 11



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

Y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, y Gymraeg a Chyfathrebu Ag en d a I te m 5 . 1

National Assembly for Wales
Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee

Gillian Mitchell
National Youth Arts Wales

Wales Millennium Centre

11 February 2020
Dear Gillian,

The Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee is looking
into music services for young people. | have asked Kirsty Williams AM, the
Minister for Education, for an update on the funding for music services which

was announced in December 2018.

As part of this funding National Youth Arts Wales was provided with
£100,000 to continue their music services, including youth ensembles. |
would be grateful if you could let me know the total amount of money
awarded to your organisation since December and how it has been spent.

In order to inform the work of the Committee please can you provide this
information by 9 March?

Yours sincerely,

o
/
L i . ’
/\)’Cﬁ / (‘z_f:q_/k ke S (.L" /L/; (;{ v
— ~7

Bethan Sayed

Chair of the Committee

Pack Page 23



Celfyddydau
Cenedlaethol
leuenctid Cymru

7| e — \

Wales

6 March 2020

Bethan Sayed AM
Chair
Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee

Dear Bethan,

| write in response to your recent letter and am happy to share more about the work of the new
National Youth Arts Wales (NYAW) and how this has been supported by our funding stakeholders
including Welsh Government.

As you are aware, until the new NYAW was set up in late 2017, Wales’ national youth ensembles
were in receipt of funding from all 22 Unitary Local Authorities via the WLGA. Since then, NYAW
has received no LA funding at all, leaving the six national youth ensembles at risk and in addition,
our outreach work across Wales severely underfunded. Our outreach work is a critical and core
activity of the new NYAW and is designed to enhance access to the ensembles and increase
diversity. This work allows us to engage directly with schools, the wider youth arts sector and a
range of cultural and educational partners in a way that wasn’t possible previously.

Our outreach work is also used to help deliver unique, high level training for gifted and talented
young people as well as develop pathways into the creative industries in Wales. One example of
this is Music Futures, a pilot project being used as a way of creating a new national youth ensemble
for rock and pop/contemporary music as this doesn’t currently exist in Wales.

In order to safeguard the new NYAW and all its activities, the Board and myself were pleased that
the Education Minister awarded a grant of £100,000 in March 2019 for the financial year 2018/19
and a further award of £190,000 in January 2020 in respect of the 2019/20 financial year. Itis our
understanding that this funding was additional to the money ring fenced for music services. While
we are very grateful for the support, this does leave NYAW with significantly reduced funding in
comparison to the levels previously received until 2016/17 from the local authorities in Wales. |
have attached as an appendix our request to the WLGA for support in the 2019/20 financial year
which outlines this position in more detail.

Nedd g
Lywodraeth Cymru

National Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, /g\} Cyngor Celfyddyday Cymru ¢'E'§%‘£‘|{FGA" {é %

Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL Arts Council of Wales LOTTERY FUNDED
T 029 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.org.uk / wa.nyad o@GK Pagd
Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643



mailto:nyaw@nyaw.org.uk
http://www.nyaw.org.uk/

— N\

Please also find attached two appendices that provide more detail about the kind of outreach and
access work the funding intervention from Welsh Government supported: Cér Skills and Music
Futures. Both are good examples of the new direction of the new NYAW, alongside our
development of the six national ensembles. With the right levels of funding in place, NYAW can
continue to support significant numbers of gifted and talented young people in Wales in the future
both within formal education settings and outside of these. We are very grateful to the Minister for
her support.

Yours sincerely,

GIMTIAD

Gillian Mitchell
CEO
National Youth Arts Wales

Encs: Appendix 1: NYAW Music Futures report
Appendix 2: NYAW Cor Skills report
Appendix 3: NYAW paper to WLGA

Nedd gan
Lywodraeth Cymru
Spassored by

Welsh Government

National Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, /'\ Cyngor Celfyddydou Cymry ~ ARIENNIRGAN @ *ZL%
Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL P ﬁéouzsgf Wales LOTTERY FUNDED

T. 029 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.org.uk / www.nyaw.org.uk I AC

Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643



mailto:nyaw@nyaw.org.uk
http://www.nyaw.org.uk/

Celfyddydau
\ Cenedlaethol
N, leuenctid Cymru

-, National
/ l Youth Arts ‘

Wales

Music Futures
Our Plans for 2020

Music Futures is National Youth Arts Wales’s new project for young pop and rock musicians, giving them the
mentoring, training and support they need to consider a future career as part of the thriving Welsh popular
music industry. We are currently delivering an enhanced phase one in 2020.

National Youth Arts Wales works with gifted and talented young people aged 16 — 22 across Wales, in the fields of
music, theatre and dance. We work with young people regardless of their background, and our programmes and
projects are designed to be as inclusive as possible.

The National Assembly for Wales’s report, Hitting the Right Note, highlighted a lack of provision for aspiring young pop
and rock musicians in Wales. This project is designed to help address this gap in provision, providing a stepping-stone
between community and schools provision, and the commercial creative sector in Wales.

Building on our successful first pilot in 2019, National Youth Arts Wales is expanding and develop Music Futures
throughout 2020 — particularly focusing on expanding provision for artists wanting to perform in the Welsh language,
and encouraging more female musicians to consider a career within the creative industries. For the first time, we will
be producing a “gig tour” at the end of the project, giving public performance opportunities for participants to showcase
their new music.

What participants and teachers said about the Music Futures 2019 pilot

“If I hadn’t had the complements yesterday — | wouldn’t have the confidence to get up and perform”
“Best thing I've ever done”

“It’s going really well, it’s really nice to be with similar people because in school it’s just orchestra so it's nice to just
do this stuff’

“Making me rethink my career choice”
“Really enjoyable - fantastic to do music which is relevant to me”

“Thoroughly enjoyed working with other musicians on my kind of music!”

“The students have been absolutely BUZZING about last week. So proud to play their songs to their classes and |
know planning to meet up with the Lewis students to compose more!”
Rose Power, Radyr Comprehensive

“It has been an absolutely life-changing experience for my pupils to be involved in this ground-breaking initiative.
They have learned so much about the Music Industry from guest speakers as well as creating some outstanding
original material with the mentors. | would hope that this scheme can be developed further to allow more young
people the opportunity to work in the Music Industry. We need to create this stepping-stone approach between
schools and national level in Wales in order for this to happen.”

Bethan Jenkins, Lewis School Pengam

“The Music Futures project is a fantastic opportunity for young musicians to engage in creating exciting and relevant
music and to be challenged to stretch themselves artistically. The presence of an industry professional to guide the
students was superb and fired much creativity! When can we be involved again?!” Nick Rhydderch, Stanwell High
School

National Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymru ¢RIENNIRGAN @

Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL Arts Council of Wales LOTTERY FUNDED
T.1020 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.orq.uk / www.nyad o@GK Pag

Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643




N

Music Futures in 2020

Working with between 4 and 8 secondary schools in different areas of Wales, Music Futures 2020 will provide a
bilingual programme of activity to develop the individual skills of talented young music creators aged 16 — 18. The
focus will be on working with young people who are already creating some original work in the rock/pop genre or who
are interested in having more opportunities in live performance in a commercial setting. Participants will be those who
have either been identified by their school as gifted and talented in this area or who self-identify as individuals genuinely
committed to exploring a career in the creative industries in Wales and specifically in this genre of music.

As part of the continued development of Music Futures, the next phase will be delivered bilingually with both digital
and live outcomes in the form of a gig tour. As part of this, NYAW is focused on developing stronger relationships with
venue and festival partners including Clwb Ifor Bach, Ty Pawb and National Eisteddfod.

Through the project, we will engage directly with and support the development of a broader range of young Welsh
music creators, ensuring that the project is not limited to traditional instrumentalists for example but also involves those

creating original work digitally. Emerging songwriters and those wishing to further develop live performance experience
as well as their knowledge of the commercial music sector will also be targeted as part of this project.

Our Priorities for Music Futures 2020

We will focus on increasing access for aspiring female pop musicians, and for musicians wishing to perform in
the Welsh language

The programme will remain free of charge for participants, reducing barriers for young people from lower-
income backgrounds

We will work with Welsh promoters to develop a “gig tour”, providing performance opportunities for the young
participants and a public showcase for their music

We will develop a pan-Wales offer, working with schools, young people and venues from across Wales

Features of the Music Futures programme

e Targeted programme to promote better diversity and inclusivity in music creation with a particular focus on
gender and language parity

¢ Intensive residential opportunity so that young music creators aren’t confined to a school learning environment
Encourage talented music creators to take more risks, to experiment and challenge each other as peers
Songwriting bootcamps with a focus on supporting emerging music creators to work bi-lingually or through
Welsh medium
Bespoke external mentoring programme from established professional artists
Empowering young people through peer led rehearsals and creative collaborations
Champion and nurture the desire to be a performer/songwriter/music industry professional in Wales as a
realistic goal
Digital and live outcomes

e Formal link to training opportunities in the creative industries in Wales through tailored industry mentoring
opportunities and through NYAW partnerships with other relevant initiatives.

National Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymru ¢RIENNIR GAN {é
Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL P éouzi?f Wales LOTTERY FUNDED
T. 029 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.org.uk / www.nyaw.org.uk ac

Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643



Cenedlaethol

Celfyddydau Sy
A

leuenctid Cymru

Wales

-, National
/ | Youth Arts § /

Cor Skills
Project Report, January 2020

In 2018-19 National Youth Arts Wales delivered a new choral
development project called Cor Skills. This innovative pilot
project offered high-quality choral workshops in targeted areas
of Wales to more than 200 young people.

The need for the project came from observations whilst auditioning for
the 2018 National Youth Choir of Wales — the first opportunity for the
newly created National Youth Arts Wales to deliver the Choir's
programme of activity. We found that the Choir’s profile was much lower than expected, that inconsistent local
music provision affected progression routes to the national ensemble, and that there seemed to be an
aspirational barrier with some young singers thinking they were not good enough.

“I thought the workshop was fantastic and the team great! | particularly liked the way that it started
with rhythm games and organically shifted from one game to another before all of a sudden, they
were singing. It was a brilliant way of ensuring there were no inhibitions from the off.”

Christine Evans, Head of Music at Welshpool High School

Cor Skills was designed as a targeted intervention, with the core aim to provide high-quality training
opportunities for all talented young people. As part of our access and development strategy, the project was
targeted at areas with a lack of existing choral provision, or where areas were currently under-represented
within the membership of National Youth Choir of Wales.

As a key strategic priority for National Youth Arts Wales, this was funded through a combination of NYAW core
funding, plus grant funding awarded by Garfield Weston Foundation. NYAW intends to expand the project in
future, funding it through a mixture of core funding and restricted grants.

Headline Outcomes
216 singers aged 14-20 benefitted from one of seven intensive training workshops in Phase One,
free of charge to the participant

Between 2018 and 2020, applications to National Youth Choir of Wales have nearly doubled as a
direct result of the Cér Skills training.

In the seven local authorities Cor Skills worked in, the number of applications has increased five
times faster than in the rest of Wales.

More than 100 singers attended three further full-day workshops in one of four venues in Phase
Two, free of charge to the participant

For some singers, we recommended attendance at Phase Two workshops as a condition of
membership following audition — therefore provided additional opportunities and improving the
overall standard of National Youth Choir of Wales.

Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL k P Council of Wales LOTTERY FUNDED i covnnet |
T. 029 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.org.uk / www.nvaw.ordu@CK Fa
Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643

National Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, g} Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymry  ARIENNIR GAN @ { ,ﬂgr) ’r‘,::.:.m... ‘



mailto:nyaw@nyaw.org.uk
http://www.nyaw.org.uk/

Delivery and Partnerships

Cor Skills was the first step towards addressing these issues and was delivered in two phases: open choral
workshops in targeted areas in Wales, followed by intensive training days, building on the open workshops and
tailoring the training to developing participants skills in general musicianship and vocal technique.

In Phase One, Tim Rhys-Evans and the artistic team delivered 2-
hour open workshops in seven venues across Wales. We worked
with various partners, adapting delivery according to their needs.

We identified target areas based on the lack of existing choral
provision, and whether they were currently under-represented within
National Youth Choir of Wales. After building relationships with local
Heads of Music, we then went on to deliver the project in five
schools: Ysgol Emrys ap Iwan (Conwy), Ysgol Maes Garmon
(Flintshire), Fitzalan High School (Cardiff), Lewis School Pengam
) (Caerphilly) and Welshpool High School (Powys). We also
partnered with two key ch0|rs in North Wales, Wrexham Youth Choir and Cér leuenctid Mon (Anglesey Youth
Choir), where applications for National Youth Choir of Wales were low despite their own excellent record. These
seven primary partners liaised with other local schools to extend the reach further.

Within each workshop, Tim and the team gave a practical introduction to vocal technique, effective breathing
and the anatomy of singing. Each workshop ended with the participants learning and singing a piece of music
with Tim introducing various layers with different sections of the group to build towards a complete piece of four-
part harmony. The workshops were delivered in an accessible way, with none of the singers required to have
any background in score reading, just a willingness to learn and participate positively.

Over the course of the workshops, we worked with 216 young singers and as well as giving them a fantastic
singing experience, we were able to give them information about National Youth Arts Wales, the National Youth
Choir of Wales and what being a member of the choir involves.

In Phase Two we delivered three full-day workshops in 4 centres across Wales: Ysgol Emrys ap Iwan in North
West Wales, Ysgol Maes Garmon in North East Wales, Lewis School Pengam in the south Wales valleys and
Fitzalan High School in Cardiff. Participants were invited to the intensive second phase having attended the
open workshops and who were considered by their schools as singers who should be auditioning for National
Youth Choir of Wales. We also invited singers identified through auditions who would benefit from additional
training and development. In total we reached more than 100 young people in this phase.

The programme included training in general musicianship (including notation, key signatures, rhythms and the
sol fa system) and vocal technique, including breath control and the physiology of the voice. The workshops
were largely practical with exercises and “games” designed to reinforce learning and using the skills developed
to learn pieces of music and practice sight-singing.

Reaching communities previously under-represented in National Youth Choir of Wales

A key focus of NYAW’s work is to ensure that opportunities for gifted and talented young artists are available to
all talented young people, regardless of their background. By working with Welshpool High School, Powys in the
first stage of the programme and Lewis School Pengam and Fitzalan High School in both phases, we managed
to offer an opportunity that many young singers in those areas can’t or don’t access otherwise. In Wales, unlike
in the case of England’s Music Hubs, music service provision is inconsistent — the National Assembly for

National Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymru ﬁ.ﬁ‘s"n'?cm {é
Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL pséywé! ozges LOTTERY FUNDED

T. 029 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.org.uk / www.nyaw.org.uk

Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643



mailto:nyaw@nyaw.org.uk
http://www.nyaw.org.uk/

—~ N\

Wales'’s report into music education, Hitting the Right Note, said that “Local authorities provide very different
opportunities in relation to both the music education available to school pupils and to those working within the
music education sector.”

Due to the geography of Powys and the lack of a music service, young singers in that area are reliant on
schools being able to offer singing opportunities. However, access is not consistent across schools and there is
little promotion of further opportunities. Welshpool High School is in an area where access to public services is
limited, according to the Welsh Index for Multiple Deprivation.

Lewis School is in a deprived area of the South Wales Valleys, where nearly 22% of pupils are eligible for free
school meals, higher than the national average of 17%. 36.1% of pupils live in the 20% most deprived areas in
Wales. Whilst the school has a strong tradition of providing fantastic training to young people interested in
popular music, they don’t currently offer choral singing opportunities at the school. In addition, as in many local
authorities across Wales, the local authority no longer runs a youth choir.

Ysgol Emrys ap lwan, Conwy is in one of the most deprived parts
of North Wales, with income, employment and health all ranking
within the top 20% most deprived parts of Wales.

Fitzalan High School is in a deprived area of Cardiff with 60% of
pupils living in the 20% most deprived areas of Wales, and 32.7%
of the school population eligible for Free School Meals, meaning
families with limited income may not have access to tuition or local
music services. 70% of pupils come from a minority ethnic
background and speak English as a second language, with over
60 different languages spoken at Fitzalan.

Throughout the open workshops and the second phase training days, the aim was not only to develop the
participants’ singing and musical awareness but to increase their awareness of NYCW and to break down
perceived barriers at the same time.

Increasing application numbers and improving the standard of National Youth Choir of Wales

Whilst developing the Cor Skills programme and identifying suitable partners, there was a lot of contact between
the National Youth Arts Wales team and schools, choirs and music services across Wales. We did this not just
to recruit participants for the project, but also to listen to their first-hand experience which would help us to
identify potential barriers to NYCW for gifted and talented young musicians, of all backgrounds, who don't
currently feel in a position to audition for this kind of unique, high-level training. This did lead to a much-
improved number of applications to the NYCW for 2019 (91 as opposed to 63 in 2018) and singers offered
places with the Choir (76 as opposed to 56 in 2018). For 2020’s audition round, we received 126 applications.

Our ability to make attending Phase Two training days a condition for some 2019 members, and to suggest
attendance for others, meant that we were able to invest specifically in members of the choir who needed some
additional support, whether in terms of their general musicianship or their vocal technigue. This meant that the
National Youth Choir of Wales residency was extremely successful, as the members started the residency on
much more of an equal footing, and those members who attended Cér Skills understanding fully the
expectations of a residency and feeling much more confident in their own ability to perform at that level.

National Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, /g \2 Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymry  $RIENNIR GAN {é

Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL Council of Wales LOTTERY FUNDED
T. 020 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.ora.uk / www.nyaw.ord ACK Pa

Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643



mailto:nyaw@nyaw.org.uk
http://www.nyaw.org.uk/

—~ N\

Our next steps

There is no doubt that there is a need for this programme. We saw National Youth Choir of Wales membership
grow, and the standard of the Choir improve. We had more applicants from more areas of Wales, and as we
conclude the audition process for the 2020 choir we have received another increase in applicants to last year,
with a significant number of singers who took part in the Cor Skills programme applying.

In 2020 we will be further expanding the project, reaching more young people and schools across
Wales. We will focus on the following target groups:

- Schools and young people based in areas of multiple deprivation (according to WIMD)
- Young people based in rural areas, with limited access to other opportunities
- Areas with good existing provision, but under-represented within National Youth Choir of Wales

Photos of National Youth Choir of Wales by Kirsten McTernan

Natiqnal Youth Arts Wales, Wales Millennium Centre, Bute Place, Y < \ Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymru IY\lli_lg_lr_lENRI:!GAN {é
Cardiff Bay, CF10 5AL P pséywél og‘/jl-es LOTTERY FUNDED

T. 029 2063 6466 / E. nyaw@nyaw.org.uk / www.nyaw.org.uk

Company number 10449512 / Charity number 1170643



mailto:nyaw@nyaw.org.uk
http://www.nyaw.org.uk/

Paper for Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) in respect of LA funding
support for the new National Youth Arts Wales (NYAW) and the national youth
ensembles

Background

In October 2017, following a period of transition and development, responsibility for the
development and delivery of professional development for youth arts in Wales through its
national youth ensembiles, transferred from the WJEC and Ty Cerdd to one single body.

A newly rejuvenated National Youth Arts Wales (NYAW) emerged with sole responsibility for
this area of work in Wales with a new vision as follows:

Leading the way in providing exceptional opportunities in the arts for the most
talented young people in Wales

This paper seeks to inform the resolution around the issues of local authority funding to the
new National Youth Arts Wales from 2019 onwards.

Local authority funding prior to NYAW prior to 2018

According to records, it is the understanding of the NYAW Board and CEO that until the
transition in 2018, an annual Service Level Agreement was in place between the local
authorities in Wales and the WJEC. The SLA was in respect of two main elements of delivery:
Educational Resources and Professional Development of Youth Arts. In the financial year
2015/16, this SLA appears to represent £1.1million from the local authorities to the WJEC
with £388,000 of that figure specifically for youth arts.

The delivery agreement for youth arts under this SLA included the following:
e Auditions for National Youth Orchestra of Wales, National Youth Theatre of Wales
and National Youth Dance Wales;
e Managing the annual cycle of National Youth Orchestra of Wales and National Youth
Theatre of Wales;
e Delivery of intensive residential tuition, rehearsals and a series of performances on
tour for National Youth Orchestra of Wales and National Youth Theatre of Wales;
e Liaison with Arts Council Wales and other partners in Wales and the rest of the UK in
relation to the delivery of National Youth Dance Wales;
e Provision of a point of contact for local authorities, teachers and students who
require information on arts education and training for orchestra, theatre and dance;
The local authority contribution towards the National Youth Orchestra and Youth Theatre of
Wales was based on the average number of individuals from a local authority gaining a place
on the Orchestra and Theatre in the three years preceding the agreement.

Current situation

During the transition period leading up to the creation of a single lead body being
responsible for all of Wales' national youth ensembles, negotiations around local authority

Pack Page 32



funding in respect of the professional development of youth arts through the national
ensembles, were inconclusive.

The new National Youth Arts Wales has completed one full financial year in 2018/19. It
currently receives revenue funding from Arts Council Wales and is responsible for generating
additional earned income through ticket sales, fees and sponsorship as well as applying for
project funding from UK based trusts and foundations. In the 2018/19 financial year, NYAW
received a one-off grant of £100,000 in March 2019 from Welsh Government via the WLGA
as the negotiation over local authority funding had not been resolved.

It was recognised by all parties that the one-off grant did not reflect the levels of public
funding needed to maintain provision for the professional development of youth arts in
Wales via the six national youth ensembles. It was suggested that for 2019/20 onwards, the
WLGA be used to help deliver a collective agreement in respect of local authority funding for
Wales' national youth ensembles and related activities.

Request for local authority support in 2019/20 and beyond

It is important to note that the SLA in place with the WJEC in respect of funding for the
Professional Development of Youth Arts related to the National Youth Orchestra and Theatre
of Wales only. The financial arrangement also extended to the delivery of National Youth
Dance Wales on a smaller scale than orchestra and theatre ensembles. The WJEC is no
longer involved in any delivery in respect of youth arts of this kind.

Since its inception as new organisation in November 2017, the new NYAW is responsible for
the delivery of six national youth ensembles. In addition, it delivers a year-round programme
of outreach work designed to raise the standards and skills of young people wishing to apply
to the national youth ensembles in Wales.

NYAW also delivers a number of specific projects which aim to increase access to
professional development programmes for young people from a more diverse range of
backgrounds than has been the case prior to 2018. In 2018/19, every local authority area in
Wales was represented in our engagement with young people aged 11 — 22 through
auditions, ensembles, performances and outreach.

Given the increased responsibilities of the new NYAW and its successful delivery of this work
in 2018/19, it is the position of NYAW that future funding support from local authorities
represents greater value than ever before.

In the 2019/20 financial year, NYAW has projected local authority income at a minimum of
£200,000 and is seeking a collective agreement for the next 3 — 5 years, via the WLGA, to
support delivery of professional development programmes across Wales for young people
aged 16 — 22 through the following:

e National Youth Orchestra of Wales

¢ National Youth Choir of Wales

¢ National Youth Theatre of Wales

¢ National Youth Brass Band of Wales

¢ National Youth Dance Wales

¢ National Youth Wind Orchestra of Wales

Pack Page 33



In addition, we will deliver a number of project-based activities which widen access to
professional development activities for young people aged 11 - 18.
In the period March 2018 — September 2019 alone we delivered the following:
e 11 national level residential courses, in total 15 weeks of intensive and rewarding
training for young people aged 16 — 22;
e 100 audition sessions across 26 audition centres throughout Wales;
e 605 young people formed our brass band, choir, orchestra, dance and theatre
ensembles;
e We worked with 1639 young people across our activities;
e 8,500 audience members attended our performances across Wales;
e We awarded £80,000 in bursary funding to young people across Wales to ensure that
affordability didn't get in the way of diversity and inclusion targets.

We believe that with local authority funding support, NYAW will deliver value for money and

a substantial return on investment in respect of the provision of professional development
training for youth arts across Wales.

Pack Page 34



Agenda Iltem 5.2

MVT

Music Venue Trust

Annwyl Ms Sayed,

Rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch ar ran y Lleoliadau Cerddoriaeth Llawr Gwlad sy'n aelodau o Gynghrair Lleoliadau
Cerddoriaeth Cymru, rhwydwaith o 40 lleoliad cerddoriaeth yng Nghymru sy'n ymroddedig i hyrwyddo
doniau newydd o Gymru.

Rwy'n sifir eich bod yn ymwybodol bod y lleoliadau hyn wedi bod yn profi dirywiad parhaus ers degawd,
sydd wedi arwain at golli 35% o'r llefydd sydd ar gael i artistiaid chwarae ynddynt yn ystod y degawd
diwethaf. Mae hyn wedi arwain at golli lleoliadau eiconig fel Buffalo Bar, GwdihW a'r Parrot, llefydd a oedd
yn hollbwysig i yrfaoedd artistiaid o Gymru.

Mae Llywodraeth y Deyrnas Unedig wedi cyflwyno Rhyddhad Ardrethi Busnes newydd o 50% i Leoliadau
Cerddoriaeth Llawr Gwlad. Mae'r cyhoeddiad hwn yn cael gwared a gwerth £1.7 miliwn o drethi o'r sector,
ac yn lleddfu pwysau ariannol ar leoliadau sy'n ei chael yn anodd. Yn anffodus, dim ond ar leoliadau yn
Lloegr y mae'r penderfyniad hwn yn effeithio ar hyn o bryd. Fodd bynnag, cyhoeddodd Trysorlys Ei
Mawrhydi ddatganiad dros y penwythnos, a oedd yn nodi:

Mai penderfyniad y llywodraethau perthnasol yn y gweinyddiaethau datganoledig fydd cynnig rhyddhad
tebyg yn eu hawdurdodaethau. Bydd y llywodraeth ganolog yn gweithredu Fformiwla Barnett.

Yn fras, mae fformiwla Barnett yn golygu y bydd Gweinyddiaethau Datganoledig yn cael cyllid ychwanegol
yn seiliedig ar y canlynol:

e cost y rhyddhad ardrethi a'r cyllid i awdurdodau lleol yn Lloegr
* poblogaeth

Fodd bynnag, penderfyniad y Gweinyddiaethau Datganoledig yn llwyr fydd beth i'w wneud gyda'r cyllid
hwnnw.

Yn gryno, gall y rhyddhad ardrethi hwn drwy'r rhaglen hon gael ei ddarparu i Leoliadau Cerddoriaeth Llawr
Gwlad yng Nghymru heb ddim cost i'r Cynulliad, awdurdodau lleol na thalwyr trethi lleol.

Mae cofnod o Aelodau Cynulliad yn dweud bod angen cefnogaeth ar Leoliadau Cerddoriaeth Llawr Gwlad,
ac mae'r ymchwiliad presennol i gerddoriaeth fyw sy'n cael ei gynnal gan y Cynulliad wedi clywed sawl tro y
gellid sicrhau cefnogaeth o'r fath gyda rhyddhad ardrethi. Felly, nawr bod y gost bosib i'r weinyddiaeth
ddatganoledig wedi mynd, teimlwn y byddai'r rhyddhad newydd hwn yn cynnig cyfle anhygoel i weithredu i
gefnogi'r rhwydwaith hanfodol yma yng Nghymru, i gefnogi artistiaid Cymru a'r cymunedau o'u cwmpas.

Mae'r sector Llawr Gwlad yn farchnad gystadleuol iawn, gyda ffiniau elw tynn iawn ar weithgarwch risg
uchel. Yn aml, mae'r sector yn gweithredu ar sail model sy'n ceisio osgoi gormod o golled wrth gefnogi
artistiaid ar ddechrau eu gyrfaoedd.

Ein safbwynt ni yw bod Lleoliadau Cerddoriaeth Llawr Gwlad ledled gwledydd Prydain yn haeddu cael
gweithredu mewn maes chwarae cytbwys, ac felly rydym yn ysgrifennu atoch chi i ofyn i chi weithredu'r
rhyddhad hwn. Bydd methu a chyfateb y rhyddhad ardrethi sy'n cael ei gynnig i leoliadau yn Lloegr yn
golygu y bydd Lleoliadau Cerddoriaeth yng Nghymru yn wynebu anfantais gystadleuol. Bydd penderfyniad i

Pack Page 35



MVT

Music Venue Trust

ddarparu'r un rhyddhad i leoliadau yng Nghymru yn cael ei groesawu gan artistiaid a chynulleidfaoedd
ledled y wlad.

Gweithredwch i gefnogi'r sin gerddoriaeth llawr gwlad yng Nghymru.

Dear Ms Sayed,

| am writing to you on behalf of Grassroots Music Venue members of the Welsh Music Venues Alliance, a
network of 40 music venues in Wales dedicated to the promotion of new and emerging Welsh talent.

As | am sure you are aware, these venues have suffered a decade long decline, resulting in the loss of 35%
of the number of places to available for artists to play in the last decade. This has resulted in the loss of
iconic venues such as the Buffalo Bar, Gwidihw and Parrot, places that were instrumental in the careers of
Welsh artists.

The UK Government has announced a new 50% Business Rate Relief for Grassroots Music Venues. This
announcement removes £1.7million in taxation from the sector and eases financial burdens on
over-stretched venues. Regrettably, the scope of this decision currently only impacts on venues based in
England. However, HM Treasury issued a statement to us over the weekend as follows:

It will be for the relevant governments in the devolved administrations to decide whether to offer similar
reliefs in their jurisdictions. Central government will apply the Barnett Formula.

Broadly, the Barnett formula means that the Devolved Administrations receive additional funding based on:

® the cost of the reliefs and funding to local authorities in England
® population

But the decisions on what to do with that funding are entirely down to the Devolved Administrations.

The summary of this position is that rate relief through this programme can be delivered to Welsh
Grassroots Music Venues at no cost to the Assembly, local authorities or local taxpayers.

Assembly Members are on record as saying that Grassroots Music Venues need support, and the current
inquiry into live music being conducted by the Assembly has heard multiple times that such support could
be achieved through rate relief. We therefore feel that with the obstacle of the potential cost removed
from the devolved administration, this new relief presents an incredible opportunity to take action to
support this vital network in Wales, support Welsh artists and the communities around them.

The Grassroots sector is a highly competitive market, with extremely tight margins on high risk activity.
Frequently, the sector operates to a model that simply tries to avoid excessive losses when supporting
artists at the beginning of their career.

It is our view that Grassroots Music Venues across the UK deserve to be operating within a level playing
field, so we are writing to you to ask that you therefore act to implement this relief. A failure to replicate

Pack Page 36



MVT

Music Venue Trust

relief being offered to English venues will place Welsh Venues at a competitive disadvantage. A decision to
provide the same relief to Welsh venues will be welcomed by artists and audiences across the country.

Please act to support the grassroots music scene in Wales.

Pack Page 37



ulliad Cengdlaethol Cymru
genda-ltem-5cGume

National Assembly for Wales
Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee

Eluned Morgan AM
Minister for International Affairs and the Welsh Language

Welsh Government

17 February 2020
Dear Eluned,

Aled Roberts, the Welsh Language Commissioner has written to the Culture,
Welsh Language and Communications Committee in response to my request
for him to comment on his budget allocation for 2020/21.

| would be grateful if you could respond to the issues he raises which
include:

e The steps the Welsh Government can take to improve transparency of
spending on the Welsh language;

e Concerns that the current level of funding for the Welsh language does
not correspond with the ambition of Cymraeg 2050 and the risk that a
lack of investment could undermine efforts to achieve the strategy;

e The lack of additional funding to implement projects in the following
areas:

- Increasing the use of Welsh language services

- Using Welsh within the workplace

- Support for the health and local government sectors

- Research for policy work and to support the Commissioner’s
next 5 year report

- Further support for businesses and charities; and

e The lack of sufficient funding to fill all the current vacancies in the
staffing structure.

Pack Page 38



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
Y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, y Gymraeg a Chyfathrebu

National Assembly for Wales
Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee

In order for me to inform the work of the Committee | would be grateful if
you could reply by 10 March 2020.

Yours sincerely,

Eéf_tm ,S a’?[/é—b{-

Bethan Sayed

Chair of the Committee

Pack Page 39



4

Eluned Morgan AC/AM f"'} ﬁ(
Gweinidog y Gymraeg a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol '\/ =
Minister for International Relations and the Welsh J _-
Language - JQ

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Helen Mary Jones AM

Chair Culture, Welsh Language and Communications Committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

11 March 2020
Dear Helen,

First of all, I'd like to congratulate you on your appointment as interim Chair of the Culture,
Welsh Language and Communications Committee.

Thank you for the letter from your predecessor dated 17 February 2020, asking me to
respond to comments made by Aled Roberts, the Welsh Language Commissioner, in his
letter to you dated 31 January discussing his budget allocation for 2020-21. He was writing
in response to correspondence sent by the Culture, Welsh Language and Communications
Committee on 16 January 2020. | will answer your questions below in order.

The steps the Welsh Government can take to improve transparency of spending on
the Welsh language

In my letter to you dated 5 February, | explained that every Welsh Minister must consider
the Cymraeg 2050 strategy, which supports the strategic emphasis placed on the Welsh
language in:

- The Programme for Government, Taking Wales Forward
- Prosperity for All: the national strategy
- The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

| also noted that although I lead on the Welsh language portfolio and manage much of the
budget, we are working as a government to mainstream the language into all policy areas.
The Cymraeg 2050 Programme Board is an important part of this, and Prosiect 2050 will
place specific and visual emphasis on efforts to mainstream the Welsh language, within the
organisation and externally.

| went on to mention that various projects give specific consideration to the language as a
core part of their work, for example the Arfor project. This project aims to strengthen the
economy in the traditional Welsh-speaking heartlands, which in turn should bring benefits to
the language and help to deliver Cymraeg 2050.

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd . Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in WelRﬁ%cB@%déﬁ@ received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales

Many other areas incorporate Cymraeg 2050 by default as a natural part of their work. Two
excellent recent examples are the delivery of the new curriculum for Wales, and the
Childcare Offer.

Influencing other important policy areas across the government is a central part of our policy
of mainstreaming the language, and an element of this is ensuring that fair funding is
available for it. It is difficult to determine the exact amount, however Education, Health, and
Local Authorities are already contributing a great deal.

Concerns that the current level of funding for the Welsh language does not
correspond with the ambition of Cymraeg 2050 and the risk that a lack of investment
could undermine efforts to achieve the strategy

| have previously presented evidence to this Committee which shows that the budget
allocated to the Welsh language has increased since the beginning of this government’s
term in office. You will be aware that we secured an additional allocation of £6.5m for the
language at the start of this government. This additional funding is now recurrent, with the
Draft Budget for 2020-21 showing that this £6.5m will be maintained as part of the budget
during the next financial year. I'm proud of the increase in funding allocated to deliver
Cymraeg 2050 during this government’s term in office, and continuing to allocate this
additional £6.5m is testament to this government’s continued support for the language.

It may be worth taking time to look at the bigger picture that shows that the Welsh
Government’s budget in 2020-21 remains £300m lower in real terms than it was a decade
ago, in 2010-11. Difficult decisions have to be made across government, and I’'m confident
that we’re making the most of the budget that is available for the Welsh language.

The lack of additional funding to implement projects in the following areas: -
Increasing the use of Welsh language services
a. Using Welsh within the workplace

b. Support for the health and local government sectors

c. Research for policy work and to support the Commissioner’s next 5 year
report

d. Further support for businesses and charities

The Welsh Language Commissioner made a bid for additional funding for new projects in
his estimate for the 2020-21 financial year. Full consideration was given to whether these
projects should be funded before the Commissioner’s final budget allocation was set. In light
of these considerations, it was decided that they should not be.

In coming to my decision, | factored in my announcement in August to establish Prosiect
2050 within the Welsh Government — a multi-disciplinary team that will lead on language
planning. Some of the projects proposed by the Commissioner may duplicate work already
being undertaken or that is planned within the Welsh Government. | believe that some of
these projects could be implemented more efficiently by using the Welsh Government’s
existing structures and policy levers. Prosiect 2050 will use all the Welsh Government’s
economies of scale, and will directly contribute to the First Minister’'s commitment to
mainstream the Welsh language as a policy consideration. For instance, | will shortly be
launching a new service within Business Wales called Helo Blod, with the aim of increasing
the visual and audible use of Welsh by providing a translation and text-checking service, as
well as advice on how to increase the use of Welsh for companies and voluntary
organisations. Additionally, the pilot prggé@mrp%b%agfpg in a Bilingual Country for senior



leaders within organisations in Wales will continue to be trialled with AcademiWales; this
programme combines leadership with linguistic considerations, with the aim of embedding
the spirit of Cymraeg 2050 within organisations.

As noted in the Memorandum of Understanding between the Government and the
Commissioner (which was agreed in August 2019), the Commissioner will have a clear
focus on increasing the use of the Welsh language in a way that contributes to delivering
Cymraeg 2050 — increasing the use of Welsh is of course a central part of the
Commissioner’s work in implementing the Welsh language standards system.

The lack of sufficient funding to fill all the current vacancies in the staffing structure.

Although the additional projects have not been funded, the Commissioner has received an
increase of £50,000 in his revenue allocation in order to mitigate the impact of pay rises, as
well as capital funding of £385,000 in 2020-21 to enable him to upgrade elements of his
information technology system. | am pleased to see that the Commissioner indicates that
this will lead to other savings, and will release funding in the mid to long term.

It is my responsibility to consider funding levels across the Welsh language portfolio. The
2020-21 funding allocations will enable the Commissioner to carry out his functions
effectively without having to reduce his staff numbers.

| will continue to advocate for the language across the Government. The additional £6.5
million has been a welcome funding boost that will aid us as we begin the Cymraeg 2050
journey.

Yours sincerely

Eluned Morgan AC/AM
Gweinidog y Gymraeg a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol
Minister for International Relations and the Welsh Language

Pack Page 42



	Agenda
	2 Inquiry into the devolution of broadcasting
	3 The future of Six Nations Broadcasting
	5.1 Correspondence with National Youth Arts Wales
	2020 02  Letter to National Youth Arts Wales
	NYAW Response BS Mar 20
	Appendix 1_Music Futures report, NYAW
	Appendix 2_Cor Skills report, NYAW
	Appendix 3_WLGA Funding to NYAW 201920

	5.2 Letter from the Music Venues Trust
	5.3 Correspondence with the Welsh Government on Welsh language funding
	Response from the Minister for Intrnational Relations and the Welsh language


